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before its receipt. The date of filing by 
commercial overnight delivery is the 
date the document was delivered to the 
commercial overnight delivery service. 
The appeal should be clearly marked 
‘‘Appeal of Section 504 Decision’’ and 
must contain specific objections ex-
plaining why the person believes the 
initial decision was factually or legally 
wrong. A copy of the initial decision 
being appealed should be attached to 
the appeal letter. 

(6) A timely appeal shall be decided 
by the Chairman unless the Chairman 
determines, in his or her discretion, 
that the appeal raises policy issues and 
that the nature of those policy issues 
warrants a decision by the full Board. 
The full Board shall then decide such 
appeals. 

(7) The Chairman shall notify the 
complainant of the results of the ap-
peal within sixty (60) days of the re-
ceipt of the request. If the Chairman 
determines that he or she needs addi-
tional information from the complain-
ant, he or she shall have sixty (60) days 
from the date he or she receives the ad-
ditional information to make his or her 
determination on the appeal. 

(8) The time limit stated in para-
graph (c)(2) may be extended by the 
EEO Director to a period of up to 180 
days, and may be extended further with 
the permission of the Assistant Attor-
ney General. The time limit stated in 
paragraph (c)(5) may be extended by 
the Chairman to a period of up to 180 
days, and may be extended further with 
the permission of the Assistant Attor-
ney General. 

(9) The agency may delegate its au-
thority for conducting complaint in-
vestigations to other Federal agencies, 
except that the authority for making 
the final determination may not be 
delegated to another agency. 

(d) The agency shall notify the Archi-
tectural and Transportation Barriers 
Compliance Board upon receipt of any 
complaint alleging that a building or 
facility that is subject to the Architec-
tural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended 
(42 U.S.C. 4151–4157), is not readily ac-
cessible to and usable by individuals 
with disabilities. 

(e) If the agency receives a complaint 
over which it does not have jurisdic-
tion, it shall promptly notify the com-

plainant and shall make reasonable ef-
forts to refer the complaint to the ap-
propriate entity. 

[70 FR 24293, May 9, 2005, as amended at 73 
FR 6834, Feb. 6, 2008] 

§§ 1207.171–1207.999 [Reserved] 

PART 1208—PRACTICES AND PRO-
CEDURES FOR APPEALS UNDER 
THE UNIFORMED SERVICES EM-
PLOYMENT AND REEMPLOYMENT 
RIGHTS ACT AND THE VETERANS 
EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES 
ACT 

Subpart A—Jurisdiction and Definitions 

Sec. 
1208.1 Scope. 
1208.2 Jurisdiction. 
1208.3 Application of 5 CFR part 1201. 
1208.4 Definitions. 

Subpart B—USERRA Appeals 

1208.11 Choice of procedure under USERRA; 
exhaustion requirement. 

1208.12 Time of filing. 
1208.13 Content of appeal; request for hear-

ing. 
1208.14 Representation by Special Counsel. 
1208.15 Remedies. 
1208.16 Appeals under another law, rule, or 

regulation. 

Subpart C—VEOA Appeals 

1208.21 VEOA exhaustion requirement. 
1208.22 Time of filing. 
1208.23 Content of appeal; request for hear-

ing. 
1208.24 Election to terminate MSPB pro-

ceeding. 
1208.25 Remedies. 
1208.26 Appeals under another law, rule, or 

regulation. 

AUTHORITY: 5 U.S.C. 1204(h), 3330a, 3330b; 38 
U.S.C. 4331. 

SOURCE: 65 FR 5412, Feb. 4, 2000, unless oth-
erwise noted. 

Subpart A—Jurisdiction and 
Definitions 

§ 1208.1 Scope. 
This part governs appeals filed with 

the Board under the provisions of 38 
U.S.C. 4324, as enacted by the Uni-
formed Services Employment and Re-
employment Rights Act of 1994 
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(USERRA), Public Law 103–353, as 
amended, or under the provisions of 5 
U.S.C. 3330a, as enacted by the Vet-
erans Employment Opportunities Act 
of 1998 (VEOA), Public Law 105–339. 
With respect to USERRA appeals, this 
part applies to any appeal filed with 
the Board on or after October 13, 1994, 
without regard as to whether the al-
leged violation occurred before, on, or 
after October 13, 1994. With respect to 
VEOA appeals, this part applies to any 
appeal filed with the Board which al-
leges that a violation occurred on or 
after October 31, 1998. 

§ 1208.2 Jurisdiction. 

(a) USERRA. Under 38 U.S.C. 4324, a 
person entitled to the rights and bene-
fits provided by chapter 43 of title 38, 
United States Code, may file an appeal 
with the Board alleging that a Federal 
agency employer or the Office of Per-
sonnel Management has failed or re-
fused, or is about to fail or refuse, to 
comply with a provision of that chap-
ter (other than a provision relating to 
benefits under the Thrift Savings Plan 
for Federal employees). In general, the 
provisions of chapter 43 of title 38 that 
apply to Federal employees guarantee 
various reemployment rights following 
a period of service in a uniformed serv-
ice, provided the employee satisfies the 
requirements for coverage under that 
chapter. In addition, chapter 43 of title 
38 prohibits discrimination based on a 
person’s service—or application or obli-
gation for service—in a uniformed serv-
ice (38 U.S.C. 4311). This prohibition ap-
plies with respect to initial employ-
ment, reemployment, retention in em-
ployment, promotion, or any benefit of 
employment. 

(b) VEOA. Under 5 U.S.C. 3330a, a 
preference eligible who alleges that a 
Federal agency has violated his rights 
under any statute or regulation relat-
ing to veterans’ preference may file an 
appeal with the Board, provided that 
he has satisfied the statutory require-
ments for first filing a complaint with 
the Secretary of Labor and allowing 
the Secretary at least 60 days to at-
tempt to resolve the complaint. 

§ 1208.3 Application of 5 CFR part 
1201. 

Except as expressly provided in this 
part, the Board will apply subparts A 
(Jurisdiction and Definitions), B (Pro-
cedures for Appellate Cases), C (Peti-
tions for Review of Initial Decisions), 
and F (Enforcement of Final Decisions 
and Orders) of 5 CFR part 1201 to ap-
peals governed by this part. The Board 
will apply the provisions of subpart H 
(Attorney Fees, and Litigation Ex-
penses, Where Applicable), Consequen-
tial Damages, and Compensatory Dam-
ages) of 5 CFR part 1201 regarding 
awards of attorney fees to appeals gov-
erned by this part. 

§ 1208.4 Definitions. 

(a) Appeal. ‘‘Appeal’’ means a request 
for review of an agency action (the 
same meaning as in 5 CFR § 1201.4(f)) 
and includes a ‘‘complaint’’ or ‘‘action’’ 
as those terms are used in USERRA (38 
U.S.C. 4324) and a ‘‘complaint’’ or ‘‘ap-
peal’’ as those terms are used in VEOA 
(5 U.S.C. 3330a). 

(b) Preference eligible. ‘‘Preference eli-
gible’’ is defined in 5 U.S.C. 2108. 

(c) USERRA appeal. ‘‘USERRA appeal’’ 
means an appeal filed under 38 U.S.C. 
4324, as enacted by the Uniformed Serv-
ices Employment and Reemployment 
Rights Act of 1994 (Public Law 103–353), 
as amended. The term includes an ap-
peal that alleges a violation of a prede-
cessor statutory provision of chapter 43 
of title 38, United States Code. 

(d) VEOA appeal. ‘‘VEOA appeal’’ 
means an appeal filed under 5 U.S.C. 
3330a, as enacted by the Veterans Em-
ployment Opportunities Act of 1998 
(Public Law 105–339). 

Subpart B—USERRA Appeals 

§ 1208.11 Choice of procedure under 
USERRA; exhaustion requirement. 

(a) Choice of procedure. An appellant 
may file a USERRA appeal directly 
with the Board under this subpart or 
may file a complaint with the Sec-
retary of Labor under 38 U.S.C. 4322. 

(b) Exhaustion requirement. If an ap-
pellant files a complaint with the Sec-
retary of Labor under 38 U.S.C. 4322, 
the appellant may not file a USERRA 
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